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Saturday, March 24, 2018 
10:00 a .m. -1 :00 p.m. 

Minutes 

1. CAll TO ORDER Chairman Ceballos called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. 

March 24, 2018 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Chairman Ceba llos led them in the recital of the pledge. 

Chairma n Ceballos thanked the Commissioners and everybody present for attending the 
meeting on Saturday morning so they could get the work done. 

3. ROll CAll AND DECLARATION OF QUORUM Mary Gaona, Executive Director, proceeded w ith 
roll ca ll. 

Commissioners Present 
Jose l. Ceballos, Chairman 
Dr. Sergio Garza, Vice-Chairman 
Anita Guerra, Com missioner 

Commissioners Absent 

Dr. Marisela Rodriguez, Commissioner 
Marcela Alvarez, Commissioner 

Chairman Ceballos stated that to his understanding, Commissioner Marcela Alvarez had moved 
out of Public Housing and mentioned that as he remembered, the local government code would 
allow Ms. Alvarez to continue serving until she wou ld be rep laced, but could not be reappointed 
once she moved out. Chairman Ceba llos mentioned that he would be discussing it w ith Mayor 
Saenz so he could be advised and stated that it was a good thing and that they knew it could 
happen with her and he was happy that she was able to fi nd permanent housing, so Chairman 
Ceballos stated that he would visit with Commissioner Alvarez and would also ta lk to the Mayor 
in order to take care of it . Chairman Ceballos stated that overall it is good that she had moved 
to permanent housing and self-sufficient which is always a plus. 

Staff Present 
Mary Gaona, Executive Director 
Christy Ramos, Administrative Assistan t 
Jennifer Barri entos, Interim Director of Finance 
Bulmaro Cruz, Director of Modernization and Development 
Robert Pena, IT Coordinator 
Rafael Vidaurri III , Director of Housing Management 
Bertha Galvan, Interim Section 8 Administrator 



Alma Mata, Community Programs Director 
Attorney Ricardo de Anda 
Attorney Doug Po neck 

4. CHAIRMAN'S COMMENTS 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he wou ld sk ip his comments and would make them during 
the meeting. 

5. CITIZENS COMMENTS 

This is the opportu nity for visitors and guests to address the Board of Commissioners on any 
issue. The Board may not discuss any presented issue, nor may any action be taken on any 
issues at th is time. There wi ll be a 3-minute limitation per speaker. (Texas Attorney General 
Opinion-JC-0169) 

There were no comments. 

6. BUDGET WORKSHOP 

The workshop wi ll provide an overview of the Laredo Housing Authority operating budgets for 
fiscal year ending March 31, 2019. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that before getting to the Workshop what he would like to do is 
to consider two items that are not re lated, starting with Item 7 A. 

After considering Items 7A and 70, the Board returned to Item 6. 

Ms. Gaona presented to the Board and mentioned that they have a proposed Organizational 
Chart and provided them with what was approved in 2016 and asked if Chairman Ceballos 
wanted to go over it and then come back with the Budget or do a quick overview of the Budget. 
Chairman Ceballos stated that they wi ll do a quick overview of the Organizational Chart first 
and said that he was aware of her proposal because she shared it w ith him a few days ago and 
he would speak on some of the things that originated from him as well as the differences 
between the 2016 and the 2018 versions and mentioned that Attorney Poneck and Attorney 
De Anda, as legal counsel, had a space in the Organizational Chart. M s. Gaona mentioned that 
they have the Board of Commissioners and then added the l egal Counsel, next they have the 
Executive Director and as far as the Administrative Assistant she renamed it as an Executive 
Administrator for purposes of being able to have a second in command while Ms. Gaona is 
gone and have somebody that she is Clb le to just hand over the project versus having to hand 
carry through different departments and then they have an Administrati ve Assistant HR versus 
the Human Resource Risk Management because she fe lt there was not enough work in that 
area for an individual just to concentrate on HR, so they changed it, and t hen they have the 
receptioni st in the front office who answers the phones. Chairman Ceballos stated that the 
receptioni st is not in M s. Gaona's area, she is in the front office. M s. Gaona confirmed and said 
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that she answers all incoming ca ils, sometimes people ca ll Section 8, any department, Public 
Housing or Colonia Guadalupe and as far as the IT department, there was no change there. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that he had some concerns with IT in reference to having three people 
which he thinks is going above and beyond of what they had in the past and mentioned that he 
had conversations in regards to sizing down to an IT Director and just another staff person, so 
he mentioned that he is in agreement and kind of convinced that maybe they need an additional 
person there and in the past he had tried to make an impression to hire people to fill in t he 
graphic designer position they had which has not been filled , so it would be important that 
when they hire new people, that they come with the background they need because with 
graphic design they are having to go to thi rd parties and are paying them and said that they are 
very good, so they need to make sure that when the directors hire folks, that it be in the areas 
lHA is growing because it does not help to have the same redundancy, so that w ill be important 
for that department. Commissioner M s. Guerra mentioned that she agreed. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked if they had a qualifications sheet for the IT people. Robert Pena, 
IT Coordinator, mentioned that they had a criteria for measuring applicants like having to meet 
basic minimu m requirements before they could be considered for joining the staff. Vice­
Chai rman Dr. Ga rza asked if Mr. Perla goes to trainings dealing w ith technology. Mr. Perla 
responded that he had not gone to any kind of training since 2012. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza 
asked why not. Mr. Perla responded that as he had al ready mentioned, t he last training he had 
attended had been in 2012 and it perta ined to PIC training. Chairman Ceballos ment ioned t hat 
it was about HUD software. Mr. Perla stated it had to do with submitting certifications and 
resolving issues when doing tenant reporting to HUD and in reference to attending other 
trainings that had come up pertaining to IT, he said that he had been turned down because the 
training was too expensive, that some of the trainings were between $2,500 and $3,500, some 
were either three-day or five-day courses, but he would be turned down due to the cost . 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked what the tra inings would entail. Mr. Perla responded that some 
were on new server technologies, network security or analysis of data which would be on 
different are as he wou ld regularly work for the agency and stated that he would regular ly train 
on the side, on his own t ime and he wou ld buy his own books, and would read and do his 
experimentation at home. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza said that it was not right nor having to 
contract other people to help with the website work and stated that it needs to stop, that the 
work needs to come from with in and that the people they will hire, w ill need to help Mr. Pena, 
who responded that it was understood . Vice-Chai rman Dr. Garza stated that why should they 
hire other people from oth er places to come and help when they would have the capacity to do 
it and said that Mr. Perla needs the t raining and it needs to be done, otherw ise they wi ll be 
depending on other people to put ou t their fires and be at their mercy and that in regards to 
t he website, they had waited for a while for the website and were not happy with the individual 
who for whatever reason, they were at his mercy, so he sa id that Mr. Pen a needs to be tra ined. 

Chairm an Ceballos stated the he wanted to add that with this particular position, Director of IT, 
paying people enough to do their job is important and that unfortunately a lot of the salari es 
had kind of laid behind and said that maybe M s. Gaona will talk about it, that there are persons 
in different areas in posit ions that maybe are not so essent ial and here they have a Department 
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that runs the whole agency and when they start new projects, everything now has a website 
and socia l media and they have no presence on social media and that it has been limited and 
for Chairman Ceballos it has to do with developing capacity, but also from the management 
standpoint, it is hiring the right people because when they created the logos, they hired Monica, 
a third party, because she is skilled in doing that, but they should be able to do simple designs 
like newsletters which they are not doing because they do not have the staff that has that 
background and Robert would be the one to fill in, but he should be taking care of high level 
stuff, not of a simple logo, a layout for a newsletter to the residents or an ad for Asherton . Vice· 
Chairman Dr. Garza stated that he understood and sa id that it was crucial and vital to the 
agency. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that, in fai rness, what happened last time was that they hired a 
third person, but the person was hired without the ability to do graphic des ign which to him it 
was a mistake because it would have made the job easier for all the other departments that are 
working on creative stuff and it is such a low level task that going forward they have to make 
sure to look at the other departments growth area and then hire to match those needs. Vice· 
Chairman Dr. Garza sta ted that there are people in Laredo that are very talented and gifted in 
technology that have the capacity, so they need to advertise and also look at the sa lary, which 
is always an issue. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he wanted to have Commissioner M s. Guerra's opinion who 
said that she basica lly agreed w ith them, but also sa id that IT is so many things and that she 
knows this guy that all he does is wiring, which is his gi ft, but they do not have anybody that 
does graphic design and sa id that IT encompasses so many things and that they need to target 
and get a job description because there are people good at w iring, networking, programming, 
so many things that they wi ll have to zero in on the qualities and maybe test the applicants 
because anybody can say they do graphic design, but she wondered if they can do it on a 
con tinuous basis because some people are more gifted at it than others, some people would 
just do the w iring which is just as important or even more so because it keeps the place running, 
but there are other people that you want to specifically target because they can do a little bit 
of everyth ing most of the time, but there are people more talented at graphic design and others 
that will not do any w iring even though some people will put their little mask and wire the whole 
place. 

Vice·Chairman Dr. Garza suggested that as the new HR process comes into place, maybe get a 
new policy to help make it eas ier for everybody and it will be a win win situation. 

CommisS ioner M s. Guerra asked if graphic design was one of the harder skills to hire for. Mr. 
Pena responded that not necessarily, that there was certain software available he even learned 
to use it by himself, but it involves a certain type of creative element, that one needs to have 
background in creative styling and sa id that he knows how to use the same software, but has 
not been trained in the creative side of it, so they will need somebody that will not only know 
how to use the software, but that will also have some sort of background in the creative side, 
like knowing how to choose colors, how to use perspective, and how to position elements, 
basica lly somebody that has background in the creative side like how to combine colors and 
effect s. 
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Commiss ioner Ms. Guerra suggested that when they work on the job qualifica tions, if they can 
ask them to bring a portfo lio along with the resume and to emphasize that they want them to 
do graphic design and socia l media because that is what she is hearing from the Commissioners. 
Vice·Chairman Dr. Garza also suggested that besides the portfoli o they can also create a 
situation scenario for them and ask them what t hey could do with it. Robert Peiia explained 
that when they hire, it is a two part process, first they have them do a written exam and then 
they do a practica l one, so if they get recommended they have them set up something on the 
server and have t hem show how th ey do it, so they can do the same with the graphic side and 
ask them to create a simple logo and see how they do, or have them do a layout. Commiss ioner 
Ms. Guerra ment ioned that it would be good because in IT everybody has a little bit of 
everyth ing most of the t ime, but she asked what are the major skills and what they would really 
want them to do because if they get a guy that li kes to do network analysis which is very 
importan t , but if they want him to do graphic design, it is not going to work out beca use they 
have the basic skill s, but w ill never do it t o the level of somebody that rea lly has the desire and 
the talent for it. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that it makes sense and that the other growth area from the 
work he is creating is being able to do programming for mapping integration and th ey have not 
easily found a th ird party that even does that, so they need to make sure that somebody th at 
comes in can help at least understand it because you kind of learn as you go along, but the point 
is to iden tify the growth areas and hire to fit preferably and also they w ill have to pay what is 
comparable, otherwise, they wil l get substandard performance. Mr. Peiia stated that he 
agreed. Comm issioner Ms. Guerra suggested that maybe they could hire somebody part time 
and see if it works and then move them to full time beca use some of her IT guys are go getters 
and have so many part·t ime jobs because there is such a demand and they are so good at it that 
maybe they might be w illing to come full time. Mr. Peiia stated that they could definitely look 
at it as an option. M s. Gaona mentioned that through interviewing people for BiblioTech Alma 
and Jessica have seen young individuals who are still in school, but are motivated and have a 
lot of experti se in certain areas that maybe eventually they cou ld have them transition or have 
them playa bigger part. Vice·Chairman Dr. Garza mentioned that it was not so much the 
expert ise, but bottom line was that they were born at the ri ght time. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that it was good conversation and stated t hat he had been 
pushing for socia l media since he came on board and they had not rea lly had a presence and 
sa id that they had somebody that was doing public affa irs, but they lost that person, so they 
need to find the right person who has to be somewhere because there is a lot of social media 
and he likes it and thinks that it achieves different things for different people, but they just 
cannot seem to keep the Agency consistent and sa id that M s. Gaona is not on social media, so 
she might not have that perspective, but there is staff that is on socia l media and they need to 
be consistent because they have a huge constituency that can be educated, outreached and 
engaged ultimately through socia l media and stated that he had mentioned in smaller meetings 
that th ey are st ill posting like the governm ent wh ere they take the lega l posting that they put 
in the newspaper and then put it on social media, so he said that the wrong person is runn ing 
that page and if it is maybe not the wrong person, then they need some training so that it is 
more enticing by having some residents photos or staff at work, so it may be that it does not 
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belong in IT, so the Board would lean on the staff to fi nd the right person and to make it a 
performance measure for them to do it, not an option because he t hinks it is what is happening 
because for a wh ile, t he person that was running that page was doing a great job because she 
had the background, but then th ey lost the person and nobody got ass igned that task. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked what t he title was for that person. Chairman Ceballos 
responded that it was Publ ic Affa irs Specialist and that it was a job designed for that outreach 
and it had other grant writing components which that person did not have the background on. 

Commiss ioner Ms. Guerra asked if they cou ld add somethi ng to one of the top positions, maybe 
not t he Executive Director because she is not HR anyway, but maybe add it t o the Executive 
Admin istrator depending on who t he person is. Chairman Ceballos stated that it would be fine 
with him, that the Director of Communi ty and Economic Development is a re-tit led posi tion and 
is a combination of brick and mortar and soft social services, so probably somebody in that 
department and stated that he will officially ask M s. Gaona that every Department Head and 
Manager be set on a performance scorecard so that people have certain jobs that they have to 
atta in at a high level and that it goes from the Executive Director all t he way down and that 
when they work on the stra tegic plan with the consultant who will be helping with succession 
that it t ies into it because there are a lot of t hings fa lling th ru the cracks and mentioned that 
they took huge hits with Russell Terrace on the social media in t he publ ic eye and they have not 
been able to stabilize t hat and while they had done a lot of good and had some good positive 
stories, but nobody is rea lly assigned that public image piece, so it needs to be assigned and it 
needs to be made part of a job description and performance deliverable for that staffer and 
stated that he did not th ink it was part of IT. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned t hat there had been no posts on everything they did w ith 
BiblioTech and they already have a staff person on BiblioTech working for 60 to 90 days and he 
did not mean to call out the person, but probably nobody has told the person to run a 
BiblioTech post once a week, even if it is to tell the community we just painted, this is coming, 
the sign is coming up or here is the background and stated that nobody is running that and it is 
so convent ional socia l media and they are not doing it, so he would like to see, as they 
reorganize, those people charged specifi ca lly with that job. Chairm an Ceballos mentioned t hat 
t hey traveled to San Anton io and they did not run a story and sa id that they had tons of 
community activity all the time. 

Commissioner Ms. Guerra suggested that there should be one person responsible who might 
not be able to be posting all the time and sa id that at her agency the RP has a tea m and they 
work together and they are always posting because RP has other duties and can't be posting all 
t he t ime because he has to talk to the media and also make press re leases, so he is primarily 
responSible, but he has somebody from community affai rs and somebody f rom command staff 
doing it also, that way they are always post ing media stu ff, so it can be one person responSible, 
bu t that has a team. 

Chairman Ceballos referred directly to the Directors present and the Executive Director because 
he said that they w ill have to execute the following, that there is in between work and people 
say well we do not have the BiblioTech website yet, why do we start, so he stated that 
somebody needs to do the transition, whoever that person is, they cannot say t hey do not have 

6 



a facebook account for BiblioTech because we do not have a marketing plan yet. so Chairman 
Ceba llos said I am sorry, you already have a job, the person cannot say I am not going to do my 
job because the consultant has not given me a marketing plan and stated that it seems rea l 
petty to him that they would have to tell someone to run a social media public image campaign 
and for him the next story could be a negative one and guess what , we did not build any good 
stuff the last six months and then we are doing damage control on a negative sto ry where the 
tenant says they are rushing me out of Russell Terrace and t do not want to move to the new 
building, what they usua lly see, so somehow they need to transla te that to the staff to 
understand why they are doing it because he said that they do not have a BiblioTech website, 
but that does not mean tha t everything stops and maybe when Ms. Gaona meets w ith a partner 
she would post a partnership meeting because some of those things do need to be deliverables 
because it is not happening and he agrees that one person needs to do it with maybe more 
people contributing, but one person needs to be at least accountable for it and said that there 
is a lot in between and sees that in the reorganization th ere is leadership switching that w ill be 
occurring and hopes they dri ve some change in terms of doing the things t hat people should 
not be asked to do, things that come with the job and Ms. Gaona as the Execut ive Director will 
have to make sure those things are either numerated or well understood by staff at the director 
level, so that he does not hear that they don't have a Bibl ioTech marketing plan, so everything 
stops, no, it should not stop, it should be a continuation and said that to him Russell Terrace 
was the foster child of da mage control and though they had done so much good stuff, they do 
not keep it consistent. Vice-Chairma n Dr. Garza stated that he had someth ing about BiblioTech 
in the back of his mind, bu t he will not discuss it publicly and asked who was t he person running 
BiblioTech and said that they will discuss it later because he has a little concern , that it is nothing 
major and said that he is glad they are doing it, so t hey will discuss it lat er. Chairman Ceballos 
thanked Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza for his comments and sa id that he thought he knew what 
Vice-Chai rman Dr. Garza's concern was about BiblioTech. 

Chairman Ceballos informed t he Board about some background in reference to changes 
originating from him and mentioned that the Ca pital Fund Department used to have an office 
of Modernization and Development in 2016, that historical ly it has been a force account and is 
what HUD ca lls it when t hey hire residents to build and they give work to tenants and stated 
that it ori ginated many yea rs ago, decades ago, and it was known as the Comprehensive Grant 
Program and moved on to be the Capita l Fund Program, and it is a cri ticism and the purpose of 
t he meeting to change the past issues so they won't have these issues come up. It started even 
before Chairman Ceballos was with housing in the late 90's and it was about hiring tenants, 
giving them jobs and then they worked in construction and w ith time the department became 
kind of an integrated payroll department and mentioned that he was sure there were successes 
and thi ngs being done right , but in the last few years they found through planning that t he work 
items were customized to fi t the staffing, so they are replacing vinyl fl ooring because that was 
what t hey can do, doing woodwork because they have a woodshop and doing some welding 
like current ly they are exchanging the burglar bar doors when they have a huge electrical 
upgrade, so what has happened is that th ey developed a department that is relaying on t he 
grant and customizing work based on the apt itudes ofthe crews as opposed to the needs of the 
community and it came up during the PHA planning, so they redirected monies into elect rical 
upgrading and the basic things. Chairman Ceballos stated that since his return he had always 
thought he had identified the issue in Capital Fund, so he asked Ms. Gaona to address it in the 
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restructuring so that it becomes a project centered grant which means that now that they have 
an electrical upgrade, there is technica lly no staff that can do the job, so they are going to 
subcontract it and if they have woodwork, maybe they have staff or they pull together res idents 
and if they have skitled project supervisors, they pull together tenants the way the program is 
designed and employ them and said that they used to have maybe 30 people at the highest and 
are down to 15 and they are doing the doors and cab inetry work, they are always doing those 
th ings, the things that they can do and it really does not serve the constituency the right way. 

Vice·Chairman Dr. Garza mentioned that at the University th ey do service w ith the community 
and with LCC building trades maybe they can help out with some sort of community service, 
helping with the doors and things like that because service learning would be good for them 
too and it would make the university and the college look good. Chairman Ceballos mentioned 
that there used to be a HUD grant for the Youth Village and they could do a version of that, but 
his point about restructuring is that they cannot have three supervisors overseeing 15 or 12 
people and they had done that for some time, but it is going to change, that they are going to 
have a project centered construction department rolled into a self·service Director so t hat the 
person w il l oversee both because at its basis, construction programs are socia l effort s, but they 
had been running a construction department that was a grant which was supposed to be a 
tenant service lea rning type model and they just made it a department, so they are only 
generat ing work t hat is convenient to the staff wh ich is not right and they have to change that , 
so now if they identify a tiny home project, they set up a crew, and if it means bringing youth 
or bringing tenant s, then they do that, but they are not going to have Project Managers t hat do 
not have tasks which is a necessary change and part of the restructuring is pulling people from 
areas to where they think wi ll serve best and simpli fy some things. It is going to be a challenge 
for folks that may be moving, but to Chairman Ceballos it is an area that is critical th at the CFP 
model as it was through force account would end and reconstitute it on a project bas is, so if 
they are going to do woodwork and they have a woods hop, at that poin t they activate the force 
account and mentioned that what they were going to do in Guadalupe just got changed, t hat 
M s. Gaona did not know, but they had just changed it in the hearing in December and January. 
It was all goingto vinyl floo ring and a few other things, but thanks to Commiss ioner Alvarez who 
brought up a few issues, they went to see her home and had a meeting w ith the Resident 
Council and luckily, they red irected those fund s, so it is probably one of the major changes they 
will see. 

The other major change in the Director of Housing Management Department, Chairman 
Ceballos stated that it was coming from him too, the AMP Management System is a site base 
system which is not a new system, HUD has had housing authorities on that system for at least 
a decade and probably more and the idea is to pull developments to make them one project to 
run them to be self·susta ined as opposed to putting all the money together and covering 
everyth ing, so it will be treated as a private model and they rea lly need to do that, so finally 
after 15 or so many years they need to get to a point where they actually run a site base model; 
therefore, Chairm an Ceballos asked M s. Gaona to set it up so that they actually do site base not 
just on management, but also on socia l servi ces and stated that as of the last chart they had a 
department that did resident services on its own. Chairman Ceballos stated that his opinion is 
that if they are going to empower Managers to run thei r apartment complex, they cannot have 
other people tell ing staff what works there what to do, there needs to be co llaboration and 
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they need to have structure and oversight over what happens, so the site base modeling is 
fina lly go ing to be tested because what has happened over the years is that they have under 
capacitated managers because there is thi s overhead of administrators th at had been running 
t he place and they cannot have that, they need to have so li d apartment managers and the 
terminology they are still using is ve ry governmental in people's titles and mentioned that when 
they built Casa Verde, they essentially have an Apartment Manager, a Leasing Agent, 
Maintenance and they do not have overseer administrators, they have Corporate telling them 
what to do, but we have th is centra l cost cente r that are overseers who are supposed to sup port 
th e projects, not necessa ril y run the show and as he had sa id before, the person th at knows 
most abo ut maintenance is the maintenance person, not the guy at Central Office, so he stated 
that it wou ld be the change. 

Chairman Ceba llos mentioned that there is a Facilities Specia li st which is new and sa id that in 
the area of Resident Services, currently it is basically a Kids Cafe Progra m that is overseen by a 
Coordinator who oversees that staff, so in order to change to an educational model, they will 
need to staff it right because they have folks who are not bilingua l running some of those after 
school centers and that should not be occurring and stat ed that they empower the Managers 
to select the person that works there as opposed to somebody in Central Office that has a staff 
of 6 persons that works at each project and the Manager has no say so, and stated who fa ces 
t he resident s, the Manager, so t hey are changing that model to integrate resident se rvices and 
have resid ent se rvices or Community Program that coordinates and looking at t he chart he 
stated that maybe they have a plan that is developed by a program coordinator, but 
implemented through a management system on site. Commissioner Ms. Guerra stated that 
they want them to have consistent services too and they wan t them all to have an equal 
opportu nity to enjoy the qua lity of the services of other places. 

Chairman Ceba llos mentioned that it is rea lly a Corporate model like Rive r Bank, Casa Verde 
and Clarks Crossing that have a District Advisor or District Regiona l Directo r, but they do not run 
the se rvices, so they need to have that au thority and the wages need to be consistent with the 
authority too, the expectations, the performance and some of the managers need to be 
capacitated. Vi ce~Chairman Dr. Ga rza stated that he agreed and Commiss ioner Ms. Guerra 
stated that if some managers do not have the capacity and they will add more responsibi lity to 
them, it is going to be a problem . Chairman Ceba ll os mentioned t hat in th is case, the Director 
of Housing Management needs to respond to that and needs to be ab le to address the capacity 
either internally or through consultants tra ining and stated that the Board has never li mited 
anybody, so it was a surprise to him that Robert could not go to training because they had never 
put any restrain on training, they probably had encourage it . 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Ga rza mentioned that going back to Project Managers, he agreed that they 
need to be empowered because they are the ones facing the tenants, but at the same time on 
hiring people too, they need to be keep an eye on to make sure they hi re the right person for 
the particular position, especially when talking about someone working with children who are 
not bilingual and st ated that he had expressed hi s concern to Ms. Gaona about having an ESL 
Program for the housing projects because they need it. Chairman Ceballos stated that he could 
be wrong, but somebody said to him that if everybody speaks Spanish, does it matter if t he staff 
does not speak Engl ish and to him is ::ke how would the kids that do not speak Spanish ever 
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come to somebody that cannot speak like him, so they need to be bilingual because this is an 
organ izat ion and there are some social services elements about hiring residents and people that 
are bettering themselves, but ultimately they need to show some success, so it is about 
qualifying everybody's job into some deliverables as opposed to just supervising while there are 
ea ting at Kids Cafe, so the model needs to change and he thinks it starts wi th the Director of 
Community Development Department and implemented by the other departments because 
ul timately they handle the Resident Counci l through a Resident Services Department and that 
is not empowering the Managers, so he stated that those are changes he had kind of been 
driving and in regards to the Director of Compliance and Quality Assurance position which 
together with Ms. Gaona they had done mostly to have some additional internal overs ight, a 
separate control over contracts, Section 8 and Public Housing performance. In reference to the 
Security Supervisor he mentioned that he never knew they supervised security and stated that 
he assumed it was the Director of Housing Management and said that he had not had a lot of 
activity there. 

Chairman Ceballos asked Ms. Gaona if anything had changed in Section 8. Ms. Gaona 
responded that they put the Qual ity Control SpeCia list under Director of Compliance and Quality 
Assurance. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he was not rea lly sure about the contract of the 
Administrator on the compliance sid e, since the work is in the projects maybe it belongs there. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked about the security whether it was something t hey had before 
and what they would do. Chairman Ceballos stated that they did not, that they have some 
police officers working weekends in the evenings and Ms. Gaona informed Chai rman Ceballos 
that they have a security guard working during the day at Senior Citizens and in the evenings 
they also have security at Senior Ci tizens, so when people ca ll because t here is an issue at 
Guadalupe, if it is not a police matter, but a tenant or resident matter, they call the emergency 
number and it gets answered at Senior Citizens Home by the security, the problem is that it 
ends there, nobody gets dispatched because there is nobody else available and it happened 
w it h somebody that reached out to Chairma n Ceballos over an incident and ultimately it gets 
to M r. Vidaurri as the Director of Housing Management who has probably seen more than 
enough of it that is more of a problem. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that prior to M s. Gaona coming aboard, he thought that they 
needed to have somebody that is not Housing Management t hat can go out t here and defuse 
the si tuation because it is not a police matter, it is in between tenants and stated that the 
situation was pretty touchy, something that if the security guard was ava ilable, he cou ld 
probably just go and ca lm the situation and everybody goes home and it is the end of that, but 
there being no presence cou ld be a problem, so there is the idea that they would have a floating 
evening security supervisor, so that if there was an incident at any complex, they would get 
dispatched because the security guard at Senior Home is fixed and he cannot move from there. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked whether they cou ld add it to the contract as an addendum 
because it does not happen very often . Chairman Ceballos stated that it could be a contract 
effort . Commissioner Ms. Guerra mentioned that if there is a sensitive issue, they should have 
to respond right away because they should have somebody on ca ll. Chairman Ceballos 
mentioned that for him it can be either way, it c<'l n be added to the contract, but sometimes it 
is a tenant issue, so the private security guard would probably not be able to address it in a 
better way than maybe somebody that is staff security who has access to information and 

10 



meets w ith staff regu larly and asked Ms. Gaona if it would work to just add it to the contract. 
M s. Gaona responded that her personal opinion would be no, because of the staff relationship 
w ith the tenants and that the security would probably ca ll his supervisor and it would probably 
be the supervisor going out to any of the projects and she does not think he might have the 
know ledge either. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he probably report s to somebody 
different and might not get a security supervisor at those hours. Commissioner M s. Guerra 
asked if it cou ld be added to another already existing position and also asked how often it would 
happen whether it was a dai ly issue. Chairman Ceballos asked whether they had somebody 
taking care of tenants issues and sa id that it could be a daily or weekly issue, but it is usually the 
same people who have been doing it for some time, so how come they have not addressed it 
and have not followed up with the specific issues. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked the attorneys that in a situation like that where people cannot 
get along if they have the right to move somebody out to a different place and if it is against 
the law. Attorney Poneck stated that in housing you need to have a lease vio lation in order to 
move out or evict somebody or they could try to diplomatically negotiate a solution to it and 
on a social services perspect ive, you do not want to be caught up in tenants issues based on ly 
on another's person complaint. Commissioner Anita Guerra stated that tenants would be using 
that as a weapon every time there wou ld be a problem. Attorney Poneck stated that there has 
to be a hu manistic approach, but legally speaking if it comes to the worst situation people would 
have to conform to the lease requ irements and not cause danger to other tenants. Vice­
Chairman Dr. Garza mentioned that there are situations when it is a tenant against another, but 
when there are several persons complaining of the same tenant is different. Attorney Po neck 
confirmed. 

Chairman Ceballos asked Mr. Vidaurri if he had anything to add. Mr. Vidaurri stated that there 
is a big advantage to having an lHA staffer to take care of it because of relations they build with 
the tenants and the fami liarity w ith the issues in the lease as far as what they can and cannot 
do, so they need that familiarity, but if they have a private security company, that w ill not be in 
their mind, their mind is like we are here to enforce, we need to take care of it and that would 
be it. The other issue would be as they had already been involved when they tried to mediate 
dispu tes between tenants that he and Chairman Ceballos dealt with in the past and it should 
not rise to that level, so it needs to be taken care at the lowest level. Chairman Ceballos asked 
Mr. Vidaurri to tell them about the Russell Terrace pet issue. 

Mr. Vidaurr i informed about an inciden t at Russell Terrace that in his opinion escalated beyond 
what it should have, involving two tenants living next to each other in a duplex. One family had 
a dog and unfortunately they were not taking care of the dog appropriate ly, so they had fleas 
and ticks and it started getting to the point of in festation which is very difficult to control once 
it reaches a certain point and said that the neighbor who was complain ing had valid concern s, 
but it should have been handled at a lower level by getting the Manager involved and also a 
security involved trying to keep the peace and trying to find a so lution by remediation or 
removing the dog. Ultimately, in this particular case, the famil y got transferred, but it shou ld 
not have risen to the level that they had Chairman Ceba llos invo lved, so Mr. Vidaurri sa id that 
in his opinion it had escalated way beyond what it should have; therefore, having someone in 
that position is a great benefit. Chai rman Ceballos mentioned relating to Attorney Poneck's 
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point that he had to ld the tenants if they did not get along, they both would get ev icted because 
it had been going on for almost a year and the lady had already spent money on treating the 
dog and lHA had treated the lawn four times. Mr. Vidaurri confirmed and said that it was 
creating a huge burden for lHA because they had pulled the records and saw how much money 
they had been spending. Chairman Ceballos stated that the police had been ca lled, so there 
was good reason, they both had violated the lease, the disturbance of peaceful enjoyment and 
both tenants were in front of Chairman Ceballos and Mr. Vidaurri trying to get at each other. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked how and when the Contract Specialist or Security Supervisor 
would come in and resolve the issue. Mr. Vidaurri stated that the Maintenance and the 
Managers are the eyes and ears at each developm ent, so the Manager can make an attempt to 
try to resolve it, but if the Manager cannot, then the Manager should rely on the Specialist to 
come in and make an evaluation and establ ish peaceful relations there and report on it, and if 
the report s continue, then they look at the remedies in the lease. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked who had dropped the ball and stated that it was definitely a 
problem out of hand. Chairman Ceballos stated that it was ultimately the responsibility of the 
Manager, but the Manager is saying that it was sent to the Central Office, so Chairman Ceballos 
stated that it is where it needs to stop because if the Manager is running the place, yes you 
consult and if there is an issue that is tri vial, then Management in Central Office should take it 
and in reference to the Security Officer position, which was not put under Mr. Vidaurri 's 
department as per Chairman Ceballos idea who asked Ms. Gaona to it put under the Director 
of Compl iance so that he does not control the reporting because it is an internal cont rol and if 
they are self-regulating, the likelihood is like the case at Guadalupe where there was a dispute 
and Chairman Ceballos felt that it was not handled appropriately because he learned through 
the police department that there was a weapon involved and they down played it, the Manager 
and Supervisors down played it and actually the reporting was coming through Resident Services 
and he does not know how it ultimately got addressed, but it was a ser ious, violent issue, so he 
said it is better to come through a different channel, so that if it is a reflection of M r. Vidaurri, 
he might handle it differently, but if Mr. Vidaurri cannot control it, he cannot litigate on how it 
gets handled, so his recommendation to Ms. Gaona was not to have the security under Mr. 
Vidaurri because the Managers can control the Security or the reporting and if it is coming 
through them it is like an internal control. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked if the tenants had 
been arrested. Chairman Ceballos stated that on the Guadalupe incident both tenants were 
detained at the Center, but the staff down played it and they did not know Chairman Ceballos 
had the report and he did not tell the staff he had the report because he wa nted to see what 
chan nels they had gone thru and it got downplayed, so when he sa id if the report did not say 
there was a weapon that one of the tenants had put it in a trash can, an unrelated tenant to the 
incident, a neighbor; therefore, he thinks the security reporting needs to be separate so that 
the Director and the Executive Director would meet with Mr. Vidaurri because what is 
happening does not quite match what they are hearing from the Manager. Then, they w ill have 
that in ternal con trol. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza stated tha t they would have a separate entity 
coming in, checks and balances maybe. 

Com missioner Ms. Guerra asked about the qualificat ions for the position, if it is more of the 
humanistic or more of the law or both because if they get a police officer, they will have a 
legalistic view of it and if they get a social services person, they will have a person trying to 
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reso lve it. Chairman Ceballos asked if they have a job descript ion for that person. M s. Guerra 
mentioned that they had to combine both and is very hard, jf it is a law enforcement they will 
arrest people if there is a problem and if it is humanistic soc ial service, they will try to fix the 
problem, but they do not have the authority. Chairman Ceba llos asked what her preference 
was, if a blend. Commissioner M s. Guerra responded that if they could find that person, sure, 
why not. Vice-Chairman stated that he wou ld li ke more of a police force person. Commiss ioner 
Ms. Guerra asked if a peace officer. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza confirmed. Chairman Ceballos 
stated that there was another option, to have a licensed peace officer fill that role. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra suggested to add a resident conflict mediator so that they know they 
are not there just to arrest people and the escalation skill s are going to be very important and 
they need to emphasize it on the job description and in the titl e. Mr. Vidaurri mentioned that 
there are different tiers of law enforcement and what would be required fo r a security guard 
and just the fact that they have an individua l wearing a uniform has a cop presence, so wearing 
a uniform definitely makes a difference. Chairman Ceballos stated that Commissioner Ms. 
Guerra has a lot of insight and recommended that she as well as Vice-Chai rman Dr. Garza work 
w ith Ms. Gaona in customizing the job description so that it makes the right fit and said that 
there are police officers who are not just ready to arrest and he personally thinks that hiring a 
l aredo police officer is not going to help as much as a Housing Au thority representative because 
it will affect thei r tenancy, and if it is a police offi ce r, they w ill figure out a way to get to JP Court 
before LHA would even find out about it and the t enants are not even able to talk to their 
Manager to ask for help because it is going to another department, so he sa id that his interest 
is fo r that role to be taken care of and mentioned that they have other cases they w ill treat 
confidentially that have been ongoing, some for more than a year t hat could have been 
addressed very early on and they have one pending hearing that invo lves some of it . 

Chairman Ceballos asked Ms. Gaona if she would like to comment on any other changes and he 
would let them know on the Resident Services changes later on. M s. Gaona stated that the only 
other major change under Finance is the warehouse and said that currently t hey have a 
Procurement Officer, a Procurement Specialist, a Warehouse Supervisor and two Clerks at the 
warehouse, so it is a department of five to do the procurement and receiving at the warehouse 
and ultimately the goa l was to shut down the warehouse and have it site based and the 
Managers also being responsible for the inventory they have on sit e. Chairman Ceballos 
mentioned that he and Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza had visited the warehouse and they were told 
that there was a lot of stu ff that was very old that needed to be cleaned up and two years after, 
when M s. Gaona went, the same situation is still there, so he said that they do not need a 
warehouse, that they are not building enough to have that need and Russe ll Terrace which is 
the major const ruction project is not going to use that warehouse. Vice-Chairman Or. Garza 
mentioned that they have a surplus of old materia l. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that they 
need to get it either used or surplus sa les. 

M s. Gaona stated that they had just found out in the budget that 50 water heaters are there 
for some AMP and apparen tly the funding stopped and t hey did not continue installing them 
and there are also wall heaters or fan heaters t hat do not fit and mentioned t hat it was a 
purchase of $7,000 for the hea ters. Chai rm an Ceballos stated that they are running a 
warehouse with three folks and before they started Russe ll Terrace he had recommended to 
put staff where they needed it because he was working evenings along with Attorney Poneck, 
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Attorney De Anda, Alma, Bulmaro and Melissa and yet they have a warehouse with three people 
keeping an eye on materi a l that is like five years old. Chai rman Ceba llos a lso mentioned that 
t hey were running the Capital Fund Program as a payroll department, a construction 
department that was based on payro ll wh ich means that they sta rted a work item and said that 
he was general izing because he was sure there were ve ry good things that were completed on 
task, but there were others that they did until payroll ran out and even if the job was not 
completed, so if it was replacing all windows and they ran out of payroll, it stopped and they 
cannot do that, they need to be project centered and said that the warehouse is just an 
overhead they do not need any more under the current model and actually not even under the 
pr ior model because it is just stocking supplies, and also refe rred to the problems in South 
Laredo with the fi ling cabinets, refrigerators and stoves and sa id that nobody should keep any 
of t hat. Chairman Ceba llos asked if they ever see an apartment complex in the priva te sector 
that keeps two or three yea r old stuff; it is either working or not working, if it is not working it 
gets disposed of, so that was the other change he sa id. 

Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked if the PR Specialist cou ld be added to one of the people that 
Chairman Ceba llos had said wou ld be under the soft end , the Director of Community and 
Economic Development because if they want it to be part of the deliverables they need to add 
the actual t itle to it maybe to the Project Coordinator, she was not sure what he envisioned, 
but whatever he would think would be more appropriate because if they want to make it a 
deliverab le they should reflect the title by adding j PR Specialist because that way the person 
knows just from the tit le that they are responsible for social media . Chairman Ceballos stated 
that he would like for the Director to be responsible and for the Director to designate various 
people li ke the committee Commissioner Ms. Guerra talked about, but ultimately he wou ld like 
the Director to be responsi ble and one concern he has and is beginning to happen as per hi s 
assessment is that they start projects, they started BiblioTech and they have others in t he back 
burner waiting for them to make time to work, so they need to have people that are doing 
different projects, not just one, and ultimately the Directors need to implement their 
department wi th that understand ing. Chairman Ceba llos stated that he would prefer givi ng the 
responsibility to the Director, so if they do not have soc ial media, the Director will be the first 
line of accountability even if the Director had assigned it to the Project Coordinator or the 
Program Coordinato r and stated that it would be smart to add it to the job description for both, 
but ultimately he would like the first li ne of accountabil ity to be the Directo r. Commiss ioner 
Ms. Guerra stated that she did not have a problem with that as long as there is a team that 
works on it and mentioned that when they get the mobile app out, it is going to take a lot of 
work for IT working with the vendor. Chairman Ceballos stated that Ms. Gaona should devise 
a stra tegy to get all the depa rtments to feed into it because everybody is generating work, good 
successfu l work that can be highlighted. Commissioner Ms. Guerra stated that what they do at 
a ll the residential services is very social media friendly. 

Chai rma n Ceballos mentioned that Monica is drawing up a marketing plan and that is where 
they can integrate departments feeding in and sa id that he agreed with Commissioner Ms. 
Guerra that somebody has to be the one that types it, but the Director will have the 
accountabi lity and does not want for the Director to say that it was given to a particular person, 
so first it starts with the Director. Commissioner Ms. Guerra stated that she agreed with 
Chairman Ceba llos in refe rence to having deliverables and that it should be so many media 

14 



posts per day or per week and they need to outline it as to whether they want Instagram or 
Facebook, what frequency and what type, whether they just want to post, do series or graphic 
design. Chairman Ceballos asked Alma to chime in. 

Alma Mata, Community Programs Director, mentioned that the BiblioTech initiative they have 
going on is going to take place and sa id th at they had already started doing it the previous week 
and were a little bit delayed because they were wai ting on the strategic marketing plan, but 
they w il l go ahead and will move forward w ith it and will start integrat ing the different 
departments and become more visible which is something she thinks they ca n achieve definitely 
very quickly. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked if there was a way the Board could be aware of 
what is going on like through an e-mail in reference to any project they w ill start or promoting 
BiblioTech and said that they w ill talk about it more privately and they w ill address it . M s. Gaona 
mentioned that with social media the staff is concerned about what they should or should not 
post, whether something is appropriate. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that it is fin e, but that 
they should get over that concern and discuss it because time goes by and they have not posted, 
so if Ms. Gaona has that concern and if she wants to bring it to t he Board to give her guidance, 
fine or if she want s to give it to the Director to give her guidance, fine because what Chairman 
Ceballos is hearing is that they don't have a plan, so he recommended M s. Gaona to drive those 
decisions points because that is what will make her job easier and w ill be more successful that 
way, but if she does not drive those decision making points and if they look at when the last 
post was made, Ms. Mata said that it was probably for the hol idays. Comm issioner Ms. Guerra 
mentioned that there is also some fear of making mistakes when posting and also there might 
be certa in resistance because they might get in trouble. M s. Mata mentioned that th ey wi ll set 
up an internal meeting for socia l media. 

Commissioner Ms. Guerra brought up the discussion regarding the HR position and said that 
she does not think it should be with the Administrative Assistant because when something 
serious comes up and the person is low level and will not be able to do anything about it because 
it is so serious that is above them and they w ill get in trouble wi th the person causing the issue 
and she asked if they could move it to at least Executive Administrator, that they might not 
think the position is important, but that when it becomes important, it is rea lly important to 
have a higher level of authority. Vice-Chai rman Dr. Garza st ated that he agreed w ith 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra that it is extremely important that it should be at that higher level 
for the person to be able to make decisions, otherwise, she would have to go every minute 
knocking at the door of the person that will help her to get authorization and saying this is the 
issue, th is is the decision, do I have the blessing from everybody to do it, so Vice-Chairman Dr. 
Garza stated that Commissioner M s. Guerra was exactly right that the person should be able to 
go to the Executive Director to inform about the situation and the decision the person is making. 
Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he will give some background. Commiss ioner M s. Guerra 
stated that an Adm inist rative Assistant is not going to have the authority nor the qualifica tions. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that the policies are drawn so that the Executive Director is the end 
of t he line before it gets to the Board and sa id that one of the concerns he had with that role 
and sa id that it was not an administrative assistant position, was an HR person that was making 
certain decisions that frankly because they do not have the au thority structure in our policies 
to make, it got them in some pickles, so unless they change the policies to give the person more 
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authority, it rea lly ends up being the Directo r's responsib ility, but if t hat person suspends 
someone based on a recom mendat ion from a Director without consult ing w it h the Executive 
Director, under our pol icies she is still in, so the only thing to watch is if they want to add more 
capacity there, Chairman Ceballos would be fine with it because there is not enough work in 
that office. 

Commissioner Ms. Guerra stated tha t it will not be to add a new posi tion, but to change it 
maybe to Executive Administrator position because, fi rst of all , to be an Administrative Assistant 
takes certain skills and to be HR, a good HR, t hey need to have all th e different certificat ions, 
qualifications and training that is beyond an Administrat ive Assistant. Commissioner Ms. 
Guerra mentioned that her friends who work in HR w il l do FMLA which is pretty serious and if 
they are not doing it the right way there is liability and law suits. Vice-Chai rman Dr. Garza asked 
if lHA had certain structures for HR Director t hey must ad here to. Chairman Ceballos 
responded that not necessarily t he HR. It is the Director who has the responsibili ty, when 
somebody gets dismissed it occurs through the Director's actions. Chairman Ceba llos stated 
that it is not what Commissioner M s. Guerra is saying, that what he th inks Commissioner Ms. 
Guerra is saying is to make sure there is enough capacity and ski lls t o handle HR. Com missioner 
Guerra stated that what an Administrative Ass istan t makes versus what she is required to do in 
HR, she w ill not be doing HR 90% of the t ime, but t he 10%, she w ill need to make sure is good 
because she knows public entit ies have suffered due to not doing HR correctly. Chairman 
Ceballos mentioned that it wil l be a matter that when they discuss pay they need to make sure 
t hey have enough to hire the right skills and that w ill take care of t he HR expertise. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra wondered whether they w ill take t he person seri ously if the title is 
Administrative Assistant / Human Resource Specialist because she worried about t he t itle 
combination. Chairman Ceballos sta ted that the t itle might need to change. Comm issioner M s. 
Guerra stated that they need to match the title with t he sk ill s, responsibilit ies and the 
knowledge they need and mentioned that if they w ill do it t he way lHA is structured, she asked 
if Ms. Gaona will be doing the FMLA issues because people have gotten in trouble for firing 
people when they are on FMLA which is very serious and they have had people from the 
Department of labor audit ing for not paying certain things. Chai rman Ceballos asked Ms. 
Gaona to ch ime in. 

Ms. Gaona mentioned that the reason for not leaving it as HR is because the pay scale t hey had 
before for Human Resource Risk Manager, there is not enough work fo r that and also what Ms. 
Gaona experienced in the mess t he individual left prior to M s. Gaona arriving, the checks and 
balances were not t here to make su re that he was covering us, so she wants to leave it as to 
where the individual could have the administ ra tive background because t hey are making the 
decisions on information and stated that maybe he was not underst anding as to when to bring 
in benefits because currently she has been receiving requests fo r reti rement and insurance for 
people that should have been covered a yea r or seven months ago and they are having to go 
back pay and putting them on health insurance and reti rement because the HR person was not 
doing it. Commissioner Ms. Guerra mentioned that if t hey are ta lking about the qualifications 
of t he individual before, she is also cO l)cerned because she thin ks they will not bring in the 
person if they say they are an Adm inistrative Assistant because a lot of people who consider 
themselves the most quali fied Administ rat ive Assistants wi ll apply for the Administrative 
Assistant position, but M s. Gaona is !alking about people that should be well informed about 
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all the benefits, employment and labor laws and Com missioner Ms. Guerra does not think they 
will attract that type of person to resolve the problems they had before. Chairman Ceballos 
mentioned that it should benefit the office because it will give more capacity in terms of pay to 
bring in a better qualified person and it does not mean just to do HR. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza 
asked Attorney Poneck that the title for HR is not Executive Director, but Administrative 
Ass ist ant, but the job description cal ls for the job to do HR responsibilities, then the title does 
not really matter because it is in the job description, it has to do with the responsibilities the 
person has in regards to the particular title. Attorney Poneck responded that it also had to do 
with the ability to do the job. Commissioner Ms. Guerra stated that the ability to do the job 
wou ld be most important, but that she is just worried that they will not attract the people that 
would be able to do the job if they are applying for an Administrative Assistant position. Vice­
Chairman Dr. Garza mentioned that if the salary is nice and ent icing, they w ill have qualified 
people applying. Chairman Ceballos asked if they had a concern over the change of the title. 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza stated he did not. Chairman Ceballos sta ted that he did not either, so 
he thought they could accommodate the title change and he thinks it helps with staff receiving 
authority, so it is fin e. 

Chairman Ceballos asked Ms. Gaona if she had any other comments. Ms. Gaona responded 
that she did not think they have any other major changes other than the ones they had already 
discussed about Capita l Fund . Chairman Ceballos asked about Section 8. M s. Gaona responded 
that only the Qual ity Control Specialist was moved over to Compliance and that befo re it was 
an Assistant Section 8 Administrator. Chairman Ceballos asked if she had a chance to discuss 
the Contract Ad minist rator with the folks involved for a replacement there and if it was there 
where it belonged. Ms. Gaona stated that they had the discussion about it, but she still feels it 
should be under the Director of Community and Economic just because they w ill be overseeing 
a lot of the projects on the contracts and also because of the compliances. Chairman Ceballos 
stated that it had to do with getting the person to do the work, if the work is generated by 
another department, it is just making sure that the person does the work, so they might want 
to leave that for lHA staff to work through and sa id that obviously Ms. Ortiz is not present and 
was curious to see how Ms. Ortiz would see that implemented and stated that he knew Ms. 
Barrientos is currently Acting Finance Director, but he asked jf she had any comments on Sect ion 
8 and then asked Bertha Galvan who is currently Acting Section 8 Director if she had any issues 
w ith the structure because it would be the time to say. M s. Galvan stated that they have a 
Quality Control Specialist and currently they are missing one staff member, but she said that 
the structure is working wel l. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that they had two Section 8 
Inspectors and asked if they had two before. Ms. Galvan confirmed they cu rrently have two 
inspectors and they had three before. Chairman Ceballos asked if they were doing fine with 
two. Ms. Galvan confirmed and mentioned that they are doing the cont racts for Russell Terrace, 
Casa Verde and River Bank. Chairman Ceballos asked who would be overseeing those 
consultants. Ms. Gaona responded that it will be the Contract Administrator. Chairman 
Ceballos mentioned that it made sense that it would be there under Director of Compliance and 
not under Community. 

Before going to a break Chairman Ceballos asked if anybody else wanted to comment on 
st ructure and they could also meet with Ms. Gaona and asked if there was anyth ing they would 
like to comment on or give feedback and then asked Ms. Barrientos if she was fine w it h the 
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structure in Finance and stated that they w ill have a training program drawn up within the next 
60 days. M s. Barrientos stated it was fin e. 

Robert Pena, IT Coordinator, commented on a suggestion in regards to the security guard 
position question, whether to be a law enforcement or hu manistic person. He recommended 
taking a look at the Police Department Community Re source Unit and looking at how t hey work 
their school resource officers because they are law enforcement officers in a setting where they 
essentia lly are having to do counsel ing as well, so there is where they would kind of find a 
balance between the law enforcement and the humanistic side and stated that it was just a 
suggestion. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that it was a good point. 

In regards to CFP, Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he did not know how long they will stay 
wi th 15 employees and that they will probably have some new projects where they w ill have 
force account and he would like to get more youth involved, but they w ill not have folks on a 
consistent payroll unless the Project Managers are driving those in a way that is programmed, 
they w ill not keep folks re-employed for a long term unless they have projects that are doing 
that, but they w ill let the Projects drive the payroll, not the payroll drive the Projects. Chairman 
Ceballos asked if Bulmaro had any comments. 

Bulmaro Cruz, Director of Modernization and Deve lopment, mentioned that the only comment 
he had was in reference to the phys ical needs assessment they have on record which they used 
to generate the work it em for the Capita l Fund Program that was not in the plan and they 
changed when they had the meeting with the residents. Chairman Ceba llos mentioned that it 
was to be followed up by IT to put it on the website which has not been done and it has been 
since December or January and said that those are things they should not let fa ll through the 
cracks, so if they need a job to handle that, then they need to create it so it gets done and 
actually it is very important for the residents because they were told they will put it in a 
flowchart where it shows a timeline and they have not done that and even though it is work 
generated by that department, it does not have the expertise for the website. Chairman 
Ceballos thanked Mr. Cruz and stated that it was a good point and asked if there were any other 
com ments on the structure and then they proceeded with a short break. 

The Board took a short break at 11:40 a.m. 

The Board came back from t he break at 11:50 a.m. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that it was time for the presentation of the Operat ions Budget and 
stated that he liked that everything was in the black to start and asked Ms. Gaona about the 
percentage for Operating Subsidy. Ms. Gaona responded that Operating Subsidy is at 90% and 
they have the Dwelli ng Rents at 95% in all AMPs except for Asherton. Chairma n Ceballos asked 
M s. Barrientos what the Operating Subsidy was for the current year or last year and at what 
level. Ms. Barrientos responded that it was 95%. Chairman Ceballos asked M s. Gaona if she 
had prepared a more conservative version than 90%. M s. Gaona responded that she did not. 
Chairman Ceballos stated that the last time they went through that exercise, they had gone 
pretty low like 80%. Commissioner Ms. Guerra mentioned that it was significantly different. 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza stated that maybe it was because they were not sure what was going 
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to happen. Chairman Ceballos stated that if they got funding at 95% Operat ing Subsidy. Ms. 
Gaona stated they did at 90% and Chairman Ceballos mentioned they got 95%, so they are 5% 
under and based on what HUD passed there is a very good chance that it is going to be that or 
more and mentioned that he just wanted to show the Board whether they could do it easily if 
they would do it at 85%. Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked why they would do that if they know 
what they wi ll be getting. Chairman Ceballos respond ed that it would be just to see because 
one thing is the fund ing and the other is the policy decision, so the policy decision could change 
between now and the next year to fu nd the Operating Subsidy and in many cases it has been a 
policy decision, so it is not the fact that there is more money in the bucket, but the fact that 
HUD says they are going to fund it at thi s level and Chairman Ceballos just wanted all t o see it 
and sa id they cou ld leave the Tenant Rent the same at 95%, so he mentioned they could sti ll 
susta in it at 85%. Commissioner Ms. Guerra mentioned that they could because ultimately at 
the end they would be in the black. Chai rman Ceballos mentioned they are in the black 720 
and then he asked M s. Barrientos to do it at 80% which was what they had done last year. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked what the ultimate was for last year. Chairman Ceballos stated 
that they made 95 last yea r and sa id that they had made money, hopefully they did, that after 
the audit they should have money and mentioned that he was showing that because he was 
proposing something that had not been done in terms of pay and sa id that they are still making 
money and added that they did not have to know it and asked how much they had projected as 
net last year and also sa id that it looks rea l positive and asked where the savings was from. Ms. 
Gaona mentioned that from last yea r to the present, if they see Russell Terrace, AMP 2, that is 
where the bigger amounts are because of the HAP contributions. Chairman Ceballos asked if 
they are making more money from convert ing and asked how much they were looking at. M s. 
Gaona confi rmed and sa id it was about $200,000 and that the HAPs were coming in at $56,000, 
the current HAP payments. Chairman asked if Russe ll Terrace staff was at the current level or 
if it was sized back. M s. Gaona stated that they had sized it back and stated that they wanted 
to discuss it wi th him . Chairman Ceballos asked if they cou ld name the AMPs so that the Board 
can make notes as to where they are and stated that Colonia Guadalupe is AMP 1, Russell 
Terrace is AMP 2, Carlos Ricther and Ana Maria l ozano, AMP 3; Senior Home and Meadow 
Elderly, AMP4; Meadow Acres and South laredo, AMP 5 and Asherton is AM P 6. Chairman 
Ceballos mentioned that t he last two were barely breaking even. M s. Gaona mentioned that 
they had struggled wi th Farm l abor and Asherton. Chairman Ceballos asked if they included 
the sa lary comparability adjustments built in. Ms. Gaona responded that it was with the 
minimum wage Chai rman Ceballos ha.d proposed and that they had another one w ith the study 
and the proposed with the steps, where one would be at $13.00 and the next step would be 
$13.50, they would move it to that step . Chairman Ceballos mentioned it was with the reorg. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that he had suggested to Ms. Gaona in reference to the approach list 
that he wanted to start w ith, was for them not to have any sa lary that would put someone 
below the poverty line for a family of four, so that translates into $24,000 a year or $12.00 an 
hour and in doing that it establ ishes a fact that lHA as an employer should not be positioning 
any family in a situation of not paying enough at all levels so anybody that comes to work will 
make that . Commissioner Ms. Guerra mentioned that it was only reasonable for somebody 
working fu ll time. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that it was the latest federa l 2018 table and 
essentially he wanted them to start at ~hat and if they could not afford it, then they would go 
back and mentioned that they will also be covering all the employees' fringe benefits, the 
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insurance is on a group and the reth~men t is both the employee and the em ployer, lHA puts 
9% and the employee matches 2% and t hey can go higher, but on ly up to a certain amount. 
Chairman Ceballos mentioned that the frame w ill kind of change because w ith the steps if there 
is somebody at $12.00 that was making $10.00 and has been working five years, all of that 
would trigger other adjustments, ultimately they are t rying to persuade and convince to buy 
into the idea that they should be at that level and added that it will not be for today, but it will 
be taking the contractors when they hand them a contract, that they do the same, that if they 
have anybody on the job, that they need to be paid enough so that they are not in poverty so 
to speak or under the poverty level. Chai rman Ceballos asked Ms. Gaona how she had worked 
it ou t . 5he mentioned that on the other one they had done t he study and on this one t hey had 
sti ll not plugged in the $12.00 base salary. Chairman Ceballos asked if it included the 
adjustment to aU staff and if she had done it herself or whether she had consulted Nelrod on 
adjusting the table. Ms. Gaona stated that on the one they had they just adjusted the table 
based on the steps. Chairman Ceba llos asked for that tab le. Ms. Gaona responded that they 
did not have it, that they on ly had the one showing the difference from the net . Chairman 
Ceballos asked if they wanted to go into the details of each AMP first or spend time on the table 
first. Commissioner Ms. Guerra stated that it would be up to Chairman Cebal los, so he said they 
would go over the scale first. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that for a fami ly of four at 100% it is $25,100 and that essent ially it is 
t he threshold for anybody coming to work for lHA. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked if they take 
what HUD sets out as affordable, what the percentage of the income makes the ren t affordable 
for a fami ly of four. Chairman Ceballos stated that it was 37. Vice-Chairma n Dr. Garza stated 
that for a family of four that was tight. Chairman Ceballos stated that it was the bas is for the 
recommendation and mentioned that they would switch to the salary sca le. Ms. Barri entos 
asked if he would want to look at t he one for the study. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that 
they would look at the one fo r the study. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza stated that in regards to the 
contractors if they would pay them living wage and said they had two types of contractors, a 
cont ractor that would come in and work for six weeks doing the job and he is gone versus a 
cont ractor working full time like security guards. Chairman Ceballos ment ioned it impacts the 
bottom line, but ult imately it is worth while. M s. Gaona ment ioned that it would be minimal, 
approximately $30,000 or $40,000 based on the study and t he steps. Chairman Ceballos asked 
for the study and said that he was looking for the sca le. Commissioner Ms. Guerra mentioned 
that for construction she thought they had to have Davis Bacon labor standards. Chairman 
Ceba llos stated that it wou ld still rul e, but if they hired a receptionist or an inspector he said 
they are probably already paying more than that fo r some, but there are some at $10.00 per 
hour and they cannot rea lly ra ise a family with that salary. 

Chairman Ceballos asked if M s. Gaona had an official step for them to approve or if she was 
adopting what Nelrod was recommending. Ms. Gaona stated that they would want to 
recommend on some, but on some of the posi t ions it cannot be the same step on all the 
posit ions. Chairman Ceballos asked if they were adopting the tab le or if she will bring it back. 
Ms. Gaona stated that she would like for it to be adopted to be able to proceed. Commissioner 
M s. Guerra asked what was different from Nelrod. Ms. Gaona ment ioned t hat it was on 
maintenance. Chairman Ceballos asked if it was very close to what she had. Ms. Gaona 
mentioned that in maintenance the starting is at $10.67 per hour fo r Maintenance A and $13.00 
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for the Foreman. Commiss ioner M s. Guerra asked if it was the only place where she had a 
difference from Nelrod and only because they want it to be living wage. Vice-Chairman Dr. 
Garza asked about the Security Guards. Commissioner Ms. Guerra mentioned that they were 
on contract and if they were earning that amount. M s. Gaona confirmed. Chairman Ceballos 
mentioned $10.26, but they will start at $12.00. Commissioner Ms. Guerra stated that it was 
reasonable. Chai rman Ceballos mentioned that at the City no one makes less than $10.00 an 
hour and asked how many would be impacted. Ms. Gaona responded that it would be about 
15. Chairman Ceballos stated that he would want for Ms. Gaona to finalize the steps system 
and then present it for officia l action and said that it was in the sa lary comparability study that 
was done last year that they never had the workshop for. 

Chairman Ceballos asked Ms. Gaona that if somebody is at $11.00 an hour and has been with 
lHA for five years and now they will go to $12.00 per hour, how will she adjust it so that they 
do not start at $12.00 and asked if she is doing the adjustment already or how would she handle 
it and at what step she is budgeting it. Ms. Gaona mentioned that they are doing $12.00 and 
only on the ones that are way over, they are doing the next step. Chairman Ceballos asked if 
she was budgeting on 12. Ms. Gaona responded that she is not, that if the $12.00 comes in at 
step 2, then they will be moving to step 2. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that she may still have 
some adjustments and asked how she will coverthe difference, obviously from net income. Ms. 
Gaona confirmed and Chairman Ceballos stated that she was saying she will hit the net income 
for adjustments where she will increase the step in staff. Ms. Gaona mentioned that it was 
what they wanted to discuss with him to make the changes and let him know what the bottom 
line is. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza stated that jf he understood correctly, it would be like if they had 
somebody they would want to get out of the poverty level, they would raise the step, so 
basically that was it. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that those would be the easy ones. 
CommisSioner M s. Guerra asked what the other scenario was. Chairman Ceballos stated that 
the other scenario was if somebody is at $12.00 but has worked for lHA for five years. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked if they are talking about somebody that is already making 
$12.00 and has worked for five years and then they would hire somebody new at $12.00, so 
they will be earning the same. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he liked the idea of an 
evaluation, that there should be an evaluation because some people may be working for 15 
years and the value is not there. Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked who would make the 
evaluation. Chairman Ceballos responded that it wi ll be the Director. Ms. Gaona stated that it 
was the discussion she had when she met with each Department Head and went over the 
budget process w ith each one of them and they w ill be determining the Project Manager 
starting at $16.00 and stated that they have some at $13.00 and some at $15.00, but the one 
at $15.00 is handling 48 units or 100 units when the one at $13.00 is handling 272 units. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra mentioned that they had workload versus years of experience. Vice­
Chairma n Dr. Garza asked how much the yearly income would be if they go from $10.00 to 
$12.00. Ms. Gaona responded that for $12.00 it would be $24,500, and for $10.00 it would be 
$20,800. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that it is $4,000 and that the problem is that they have 
some st aff where ski lls do not match thE;! pay and their job duties do not match the pay and said 
that there is so much detai l involved that he would like for Ms. Gaona to look at evaluating all 
the staff and come back and stated that there is certainly enough net income for them to be 
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able to manage it and just to report back and they can do it in Executive Session when they look 
at specific staff. 

Com missioner Ms. Guerra asked if they could also look at the Managers in reference to the 
difference in the amount of units so that they could compare apples to apples. Ms. Gaona 
mentioned that w ith Section 8 Technicians the starting step is at $11.50 and the Section 8 
Receptionist is at $9.44 so if she would move both at $12.00, then the issue would be if the 
Receptionist is doing the workload of a Technician. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that the 
equity needs to be there in terms of the job and sa id that he thinks th ey cannot do it in the 
workshop, so Ms. Gaona needs to sit with each person and the Department Director and 
analyze it and said that what they can approve is for Ms. Gaona to make those changes and 
access net income to cover those adjustments. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza said he agreed. 

Chairman Ceballos recommended for Ms. Gaona to finish the steps within 60 days and bring it 
back so they can adopt it as an official step increase and stated that Section 8 staff had been 
underpaid for many years, so they should probably sta rt somewhere in the $15.00 mark and he 
asked M s. Barrientos at what salary they should start a t echnician to have a good quality 
technician. M s. Barrientos responded they should start at $16.00. Chairman Ceballos stated 
that M s. Barrientos had a sense of it and that the problem is going to be whether they can carry 
it in the department and that it will be an analysis they will need to make. 

Commissioner Ms. Guerra stated that it was a big difference and asked how many technicians 
they had and what the technicians would do. M s. Barrientos responded that they have six 
tech nicians. Chairman Ceballos asked if Section 8 was making money. Ms. Barrientos 
responded that it was not. M s. Gaona mentioned that it was the issue they were having, that 
they had the administrative fee and the bookkeeping fee . Chairman Ceballos mentioned they 
can make a decision to pay more and carry the administrative management side on the Central 
side. Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked if they needed all the technicians. Chairman Ceballos 
mentioned that they need at least those, which is a skeleton crew type. Commiss ioner Ms. 
Guerra asked what type of work technicians do. Ms. Barrientos mentioned that they have 1,598 
vouchers and stated that technicians helped with certifications. Commissioner Guerra stated 
that it is a very administrative type of work. Chairman Ceballos asked M s. Gaona and Ms. 
Barrientos when they could bring the adjustments back because they w ill be having another 
meeting to deal with Capita l Fund in the next few weeks and asked if they ca n bring it back in 
30 days. M s. Gaona confirmed. Chairman Cebal los stated that he wanted to make sure staff 
see the reward of the adjustment soon and asked if there was anything else they need to talk 
about on the wage side. Ms. Gaona mentioned that she thought it was the Maintenance and 
the Section 8 technicians that they were concerned with and also in Asherton, the Project 
Manager versus a Project Manager Assistant in reference to the amount of units. 

Chairman Ceba llos mentioned that they need to go into executive session, but asked if they had 
Capital improvements listed per Project and how they would be presenting those and if all 
deferred repairs were in t he budget . M s. Gaona responded that they were all included and that 
they did what they felt the AMPs cou ld ca rry and on others they need the Board's authorization 
to pull Reserves. Chairman Ceballos asked if they had a summary. M s. Gaona mentioned that 
she believed last year they had authorized $80,000 from the Reserves, but none of the work 
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got done. Chairman Ceballos asked if it was in Asherton. M s. Gaona responded that it was for 
Farm Labor. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that it was his request, not a motion, that from then on, they ass ign 
a Project Manager and give them a timetable and they get it done, and said that he did not 
mean th e Department Manager, that w ithi n the Community Economic Development 
Department, to assign a Project Manager and put it on a time frame because the Board and the 
staff spend so much time working through the work items for them not to have them delivered. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked if they knew why. M s. Gaona stated that they never got 
app roved and that the Manager had sa id she had presented them, but they never got th em. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked to whom they had been presented. M s. Gaona stated that she 
thought to Administration or Procurement and that they had sa id some of t he items were too 
high and in regards to the $80,000, none of that had been done, so the Manager had submitted 
it again. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that it probably pre-dated Mr. Vidaurri, but asked him what had 
happened, if it had fa llen through the cracks, if they did not check on the people that were 
supposed to do the work. Mr. Vidaurri mentioned that some of those items fell through the 
cracks and it appeared that in some cases it was difficult to get bids and it was not too clear on 
the scope of work at times, so it just got carried over. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza stated that if it 
should not be their responsibi lity in sending it back saying they do not quite understand what 
there were trying to say, so what would it take to just make a phone ca ll or send a fax saying 
they did not understand what they were trying to say and he asked if it made sense. Mr. 
Vidaurri responded that he understood and stated that the Managers have the responsibility, 
but there needs to be more oversight on his side and said that Managers might not always have 
the technica l experti se, but they need to provide some guidance. Chairman Ceballos mentioned 
that on deferred maintenance for Asherton they were asking for another $22,000 and there is 
probably work left so maybe it is $50,000 and suggested that in Community and Economic 
Department a Project Manager get assigned and be told that he is going to work on it for six 
months until you get it done as opposed to the Manager doing tenancy issues and said that 
obviously th at system was not working and asked ifthey got done with their work in Farm l abor 
and he stated no, it did not work with Farm Labor nor with Asherton, so they need to go to kind 
of a construction model to say this is your deliverable and stated that they have Project 
Supervisors in Capital Fund that are managing 15 people, which is extra people there, so he 
recommended to put them to work and also stated that Mr. Vidaurri is still accountable, but 
they are all accountable to Mr. Vidaurri to deliver in 60 or 90 days. Chairman Ceballos 
mentioned that the lady in Asherton is new and they thought she cou ld expedite, and she was 
expediting work when she came, but wondered what had happened and said he did not know. 

In reference to purchasing, Chairman Ceballos stated that Frank was not present and mentioned 
that if he did not have the expert ise, they need to help him develop the expert ise or get 
someone because he thinks they will have enough Project Managers in the construction side 
that should know all ofthat, so he sa id that it was not Management, but he was really suggesting 
to try different system s. Ms. Gaona mentioned that in the conversat ions with the Managers, 
some of them were unaware that the items had been approved for them to proceed. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra stated that it was lack of communication. 



Ms. Barrientos stated that the Managers. did not know what got approved by the Board, the 
information was not given to them, that they would just make the request and it was never 
followed up to see what got approved so they could do it. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza stated that 
they are dropping the ball because the people attending the meet ings know what gets 
approved. Commissioner Ms. Guerra recommended that after every Board meeting M s. Gaona 
have a meeting w ith all the Managers to inform them what was approved at the Board meeting 
because they may say nobody told me. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he did not like going 
back to BiblioTech in reference to the idea of what do I post, we are waiting on the market ing 
plan, well they have not to ld me if they approved it. First of all Chairman Ceballos stated that 
he does not buy it and tha t it is faulty on Management not to tell them that something got 
approved and to get on it, but if you know you have 40 water heaters that need to be replaced 
that could have been authorized, why don't they ask, it had been almost a year since they 
passed it, so he said again that he does not buy that and if they go to site base, then bring the 
Manager, if they are approving one of their items, they have to be at the Board meeting and if 
they are truly empowering Managers, then they should be them attending the meetings. Vice­
Chairman Dr. Garza stated that if there is an item for approval, they should attend the meeting 
and hear it from the Board, so they cannot say no one told me. Mr. Vidaurri stated that it was 
understood. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that they authorized resea ling of the parking lot at Farm labor 
and the Manager is seeing it every day, so would not they want to come and ta lk to the Director 
or Mr. Vidaurri to find out what happened . It got approved, but nothing happened. Mr. Vidaurri 
stated that they need to eliminate all the break downs in communication at all levels. 
Commissioner M s. Guerra stated that it is a good idea to bring them in at the meetings, so that 
way they know. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that if they have an item from one of the 
properties, the Managers need to come to the meeting. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked if Ms. 
Gaona had met w ith Project Managers. Ms. Gaona responded that she had met with all of them 
and said that they were surprised when she let them know that if they do not rent the unit by 
the pt of the month she ca nnot submit subsidy for them and they were not aware of any of 
that nor the funding levels, none of that during her Budget Workshop and they said that it was 
the first time they were going through that process. Chairman Ceballos stated that they need 
training. Mr. Vidaurri stated that it was a real eye opener. Vice-Chai rman Dr. Garza 
recommended to make it a habit of meeting with them after every Board meeting or once a 
month on what they are doing or what they need and have them come in to the Board meetings 
wi th no excuses. Commiss ioner Ms. Guerra also recommended for Mr. Vidaurri to meet with 
the Project Managers once a month or after every Board meeting or however he would want 
to do it to check on the ir progress and not finding after six months that something was not 
done. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that Bulmaro mentioned that they were supposed to inform the 
resid ents about the work items, so they would need to assign someone in some department 
and said that he is putting it in the Commu nity and Economic Department because he thinks 
that it is going to be the Project delivery and they are also responsible for putting it on the 
website and if Managers want to know .. bout their work items, they can see them in the 
website, all of them are in the website and stated that the Board does the work, but then there 
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is that gap. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza also recommended going to every project and informing 
them what the Board approved. M s. Gaona mentioned that she had advised each of the Project 
Managers that once the Budget would be approved Mr. Vidaurri would get them a copy of 
everyth ing that was approved and they would be responsible for it. Mr. Vidaurri ment ioned 
that he wanted to give cred it to M s. Gaona because what w ill happen is that they will all meet 
and it w ill be an open book and all of them wil l have a discussion . Chairman Ceballos asked if it 
was not happening before. Mr. Vidaurri sa id that not as thoroughly. Mr. Vidaurri ment ioned 
that the Managers need to be informed . Commissioner M s. Guerra mentioned that it should 
be a continuous feedback w ith the Project Managers, but a lot oftimes it is not. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that they will look at AMP 6 deferred repairs for Asherton and 
stated that there is a request for nearly $23,000 in dead bolts, water heaters, office desk, office 
chair, riding lawn mower and landscape and asked how they w ill inventory those items once 
they are purchased, whether it wou ld be site based or centralized and in particular, who would 
be responsible for the riding lawn mower once it is purchased, whether it would be the 
Manager. The response was that it wilt be the responsibility of the Manager and in reference 
to internal control, Chai rman Ceballos asked if it would be Frank. M s. Gaona confirmed. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked how often they would check inventory. M s. Gaona mentioned 
that in Finance it should be done randomly and at the end of the year and stated that it should 
be done by every March and that it needs to be documented. Commissioner M s. Guerra asked 
if they could check on it. Chairman Ceballos stated that it should be one of Frank's scorecard 
deliverables and that he needs to report back on each of the AMP's inventory. Commiss ioner 
M s. Guerra asked if it could be presented and that it does not have to be a very long list, it cou ld 
only be to info rm that it was done and what was found. Chairman Ceballos stated t hat he 
agreed and asked if they were putting sprinklers and if it was the recommendation. It was 
confirmed, then Chairman Ceballos asked if there were any comments on AMP 6 on the last 
page and ment ioned that they had pending items from prior years. Ms. Gaona stated that those 
were the pending items and that she wanted to let him know he was goi ng to see another 
$117,000 in Farm labor which is the same. Chairman Ceballos asked Ms. Gaona if she agreed 
that they should give the project a different model and recommended to give them 120 days to 
get it all done and if it made sense to have somebody on payroll to oversee that . M s. Gaona 
confirmed. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that on Farm labor, the $117,000 was about 
replacement of refrigerators and asked if it meant they had five bad refrigerators. 

Ms. Gaona mentioned that those are replacement refri gerators they are looking to purchase if 
there would be a need or an emergency, not that they w ill go and purchase all five, they are 
just requesting five and added that they will see them in the AMPs because of the work item 
they have in Capital Fund. Chairman Ceballos mentioned t hat they have some lavatories 
cabinets and kitchen cabinets and recommended to analyze cost before giving them to staff to 
see if it is better to have them done by a third party. M s. Gaona mentioned that a lot of t hese 
it ems were brought up in the inspection they had done. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to go into Executive Session to discuss administrative items 
considered confidential regarding personnel matters. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 



Chairman Ceballos ca lled all the Commissioners present, Attorney Poneck, Attorney De Anda, 
Mary Gaona, Executive Di rector, and Jennifer Barrientos, Interim Director of Finance to go into 
Executive Session. 

The Board entered into Executive Session at 12:30 p.m. 

The Board reconvened from Executive Session at 1:55 p.m. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that there was no action taken in Executive Session. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that they w ill now go to Item 7B. 

7. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Discussion and possible action to au thorize Executive Director to obta in an agency credit 
card w ith a credit amount to be determined by the Board of Commissioners, for agency 
travel and business purposes. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that they had a credit card for travel purposes and said that 
the bank is ask ing them to update into a new account , a new credit card because they 
cannot just switch names and the rea son being BOC business transactions and now w ith 
Russell Terrance and the things that are required they do not have anything to expedite 
a purchase at Home Depot or McCoy's, so they would like to see if they can 
accommodate it and said that they have not been using it. For history purposes, in the 
last cou ple years the only reason to use the credit card had been for t ravel, so t hey are 
adding business purposes and the explanation is to kind of help staff, otherwise, they 
have to go through procurement which sometimes is not quick enough, so that is why 
they see that change. 

Chairman Ceballos asked Ms. Gaoila what the current limit is and if they are looking at 
a larger amount. Ms. Gaona responded that the current limit is $5,000.00 and that if 
Christy tries to process travel and purchases at the same time, they will run into 
problems and that usually they have enough other than for major purchases, so she sa id 
that at least $10,000 limit. Chairman Ceballos asked if there were any questions or 
discussion. Vice-Chai rman Dr. Garza stated it was fine with him. Chairman Ceballos 
recommended to keep an eye on transactions beyond getting reconciled and M s. Gaona 
as the Director would look at and make sure that all transactions make sense and he 
would t hink it wou ld be Ms. Gaona who would authorize the use of it and also stated 
that t hey need to name the persons that wil l have access and mentioned that he knew 
that it has happened with systems where there would only be one person having access 
and it was what was happening that only Ms. Ortiz had access, so he recommended to 
add at least two persons, Ms. Gaona and maybe the Finance Director. 

Commissioner M s. Guerra asked who would be looking at the statements because she 
stated that there has been so much fraud lately. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that the 
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issue is always interna l control, so if it is M s. Gaona making the purchase, it should be 
really somebody else also looking at it, maybe they can get the independent auditor to 
look at it at least quarterly and to put it into a motion that it gets reconciled that way, 
because, otherwise, they would be reconciling their own work which is probably not the 
best pract ice. Chairman Ceba llos asked if there would be any other use for the credit 
card beyond emergencies. 

Robert Pena, IT Coordinator, mentioned that his opinion would be for purchasing 
services online, for example the electronic document signing which cannot be procured 
because they wou ld only accept credit card, they wou ld not take wire transfers, 
purchase order, or a check, so it would be one type of service they would not be able to 
access because they would not have the form of payment for it and sa id it would be one 
reason for having a cred it card, to pay for services online. Commissioner Ms. Guerra 
mentioned that it wou ld be more susceptible for third party transactions. Mr. Pena 
responded that any kind of transaction whether it wou ld be made through a computer, 
browser, a telephone or through any kind of device is susceptible to card skimming, not 
the computer, but anything is susceptible to have the numbers stolen and stated that 
he had his debit card picked up a few times, so th e only thing he could recommend 
would be to consistently monitor it on a regular basis and have the financial institution 
report back, like IBC, his bank wou ld call him to ask if he is using his card in Florida, so 
he sa id that it would be the only thing he would recommend. Commissioner M s. Guerra 
stated that she does not have any problem as long as they have the kind of internal 
control they were recommending. 

Chairman Ceballos made a motion for them to approve the new account with four 
recommendations: to draft the amendment to the policy and to come back and present 
it so that it gets integrated into a policy, that they create a separate financial account 
that tracks the transactions separate ly, that Mary Gaona, Executive Director, and 
Jennifer Barrientos, Acting Finance Director, be added to the account and that an 
independent auditor reviews transactions for compliance purposes. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to approve Item 7A as discussed and recommended. 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza seconded the motion. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Chairman Ceballos asked if he had mentioned the amount, Commiss ioners stated that 

it was $10,000.00, so for the record, Chairman Ceballos stated that the amount 
approved is for up to $10,000.00 and asked if it wou ld be through their Deposi tory. M s. 
Gaona confirmed. Chairm an Ceballos mentioned that it wou ld allow them to handle 
any required business transactions. 

Attorney Po neck stated that it would be used for only transactions that would require a 
credit card, they would not want the staff using the credit card for any purchases just 
out of convenience and it shou ld only be for those purchases that would require it. 
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Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he would amend the motion to include the 
language Attorney Poneck suggested and for minutes' purposes, recommendation #5 
is that it would only be used for emergencies or as required for online purchases. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked if M s. Gaona is traveling out of town, will she use the 
credit card or if she would be allowed to use the credit ca rd . Ms. Gaona responded that 
she would rather not use it for trave l, that she would use it to set up travel for the Board 
or for sta ff while she is out of town, but she would not use it while being out of town . 
M s. Gaona mentioned that she would rather use her credit card and then request 
reimbursement. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that when staff travel th ey submit 
reimbursement requests. Ms. Gaona stated that they submit an advance and a 
reimbursement, so it would be just for paying registrations that they cannot pay with a 
check or to make hotel reserva tions. Chairman Ceballos asked if she would use it when 
having a business meet ing elsewhere, will she pay with it. Attorney Poneck stated that 
it would be legitimate, but stated that they were trying to make it very rest rictive for 
good con trol, so he would recommend for her to pay w ith her card and then get 
reimbursement. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza commented on a situation where Ms. Gaona would be stuck 
overn ight at the airport and would need a hotel room and stated that it would be 
considered an emergency. Chairman Ceballos stated they had already authorized 
anything that is travel related and for Ms. Gaona to use her judgement because it would 
be looked at. Attorney Poneck stated that in that situation he would imagine M s. Gaona 
would use her credit card and then get reimbursement. Ms. Gaona confirmed. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that it was already happening where they have business 
meetings and M s. Gaona is paying for it because they did not authorize any expense 
account and he does not want her to pay every time from her personal account, so if 
they trave l as the Board with her, he would like for her to be able to pay w ith the credit 
card for the group, whether it would be staff or the Board, he would not want her or 
anybody else, if it is Jennifer Barrientos trave ling with them, let her use the business 
account which makes sense, it is a legitimate travel dining expense and then there would 
be another way in which everybody pays for their own and then they submit a 
reimbursement request, but for the Board they are not doing that and he would prefer 
for lHA to take care of it and stat~d that what they are actually saying is not to get use 
to using the card every time because they will be able to track it; they set it up so that 
they could track it . 

Chairman Ceba llos mentioned that, for the record, there are five elements that should 
be noted in the minutes and asked Christy who is doing the minutes. Christy responded 
that Ms. Sosa is doing the minutes, so Chairman Ceballos asked her to make sure Ms. 
Sosa list s the five items he had mentioned. 

Chairman Ceballos sta ted they wou ld now go to Item 70. 
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B. Discussion and possible action to approve Operating Budgets and Update Organizational 
Chart fo r Fisca l Yea r Ending March 31, 2019, for the Housing Authority of the Ci ty of 
l aredo and adopt Resolution No. 18·R·7. 

This item was discussed in Executive Session and there was no action taken in Executive 
Session. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to accept the Organizational Chart as presented and start 
the transition into the organizational model with a few comments that the 
Administrative Assistant HR be renamed to a title that is consistent with a professional 
level position and that Ms. Gaona could determine the title, but that the expectation 
of the person is to have enough HR knowledge or develop HR knowledge to be a ble to 
hold the Agency in the right place administratively and the other note is to give Ms. 
Gaona authorization to decide whether the Contract Administrator belongs in the 
Compliance or in the Community side and finalize that decision. Chairman Ceballos 
asked if there were any other comments on the Organizational Chart. There were no 
other comments. 
Vice·Chairman Dr. Garza seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

Chairman Ceba llos entertained a motion related to the Budget. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to approve the deferred maintenance items that are going 
to be paid from our Reserves for Farm labor and Asherton as presented and for the 
record he read t hat for Farm labor to reflect some prior items that were not 
completed and current items in the amount of $117,195 as listed in the packet and for 
Asherton the amount is $22,900 as listed in the Board packet. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra seconded the motion. 
Chairman Ceballos added to the motion that a Project Manager be assigned and to 
report back every 30 days on progress. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

Chairman Ceba llos stated that in reference to the overall Budget he said that obviously 
they will probably be in transi tion into the model for at least the next six months and it 
may take a little longer, but effective immediately the Organizat ional Chart will be 
implemented and they have to finali ze the salary scale which he would like to see back 
in 30 days as they agreed ea rlie r and stated that part of the change is to get them into 
a culture that is a little more performance driven or a lot more performance driven, so 
they will find that the structure in the pay will hopefully be comparable so that 
everybody is delivering based on expectations and ve ry clear deliverables and if they 
need human assets, capital assets or financial assets, then bring it up to the Director's 
attention, so that the plan is successful and in that transition he entertained the 
foll owing motion to approve the Budget . 

Chairman Ceballos moved to approve the Budget as presented with some conditions 
that anybody affected in the reorganization gets an opportunity to reapply for a job 
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within the Agency at whatever is being offered for those particular jobs that are 
available and t hat there be a performance metric set up for all the jobs and most 
importantly for a ll our Director and Management jobs and that everybody be set up 
and that if they need to hire a Consultant to assist, that it be done and for managerial 
jobs that Managers accept, that they be willing to be available within reason in other 
hours beyond 8 a. m. to 5 p.m. and stated that everybody that deals with him knows 
things come up and that sometimes it is just to contact them to get through the work 
that needs to be addressed, so it is just making sure that everybody expects that if you 
are in management at the Director level or Manager at the site, that they will be 
expected to be ava ilable in the evenings. Lastly, that the Director have flexi bility to 
add temporary positions or floaters staff to assist where there may be gaps and fill ing 
the positions and he asked if there was anything Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza or 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra would like to add. They responded that they did not have 
anything to add. 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

C. Discussion and poss ible action related to the acquisition of real estate property within 
the inner city, for possible redeve lopment. This item may be discussed in closed sess ion 
as a real estate matter, pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.072 
(deliberations about rea l property). 

D. Discussion and possible action to ratify the emergency purchase and insta ll ation of a 
water heater/ boiler from De Hoyos Air Conditioning in the amount of $27,654.86 for the 
laredo Housing Authority, Senior Citizens Home (AMP - 4). 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that as per Ms. Gaona and Mr. Vidaurri it was not a very 
old system, maybe 10 yea rs old. Mr. Rafael Vidaurri III , Director of Housing 
Management, stated that the purchase is for the replacement of a system that was 
insta ll ed in 2011 when the original purchase was made and the reason th ey were 
bringing it as a ratification item is that the system that was in place consists of two 
systems so that one provides back up and in case one fails you wou ld not be under the 
expectation that one fail s and then shortly thereafte r the secondary back up system 
st arts to fail , so that prompted the emergency purchase and stated that they sought out 
different alternatives and at the recommendation of Ms. Gaona, they proceeded to 
pursue what was avai lab le that would be more efficient, more cost effect ive, so they 
looked at what was being done at the Hamilton and that was how they came up with 
the specific unit they have. 

Chairman Ceballos asked how it is different from the system they current ly have. Mr. 
Vidaurri stated that what they had was the customary water heating system where they 
have the tank and the burners are inc;ide the tank and this one is a hybrid from an on 
demand type system with a storage on the side, so they have the water storage tank 
separate and the hea ting element off to the side which would facil itate repairs and 
wo uld make it easier and more efficient to work on the system. Chairman Ceballos 
mentioned that he had a chance to talk to Mr. Vidaurri one time wh ile coming to talk to 
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Ms. Gaona and had encouraged Mr. Vidaurri to look at the on demand system where 
you have the tank less water heater which when they looked at it, it would not be the 
best for the facility. Mr. Vidaurri mentioned that it was not the best for the facility, but 
in a way this was kind of a hybrid because you have the tank less off to the side. 
Chairman Ceballos mentioned that if the tank busts, they do not have to change the 
whole thing. Mr. Vidaurri ment ioned that it was the unfortunate scenario they were 
going through and having to replace the whole system. Chairman Ceba llos mentioned 
that they both fell close to each other. Mr. Vidaurrri confirmed and sa id that in the past 
history, the system they are replacing was replaced in 2011 and the other one was 
replaced in 2012. Chairman Ceballos asked about the life of the new system. Mr. 
Vidaurri mentioned that the basic warranty for the system is five years and expecting to 
last beyond that, but in a way those are items considered consumables that won't last 
forever and he knows that in the future, hopefully in the very distant future, they will 
have to replace it again. Chairman Ceballos asked if it was installed or they were working 
on it. Mr. Vidaurri stated that they were working on it and hoped to have it finalized by 
Monday and he also added that he must share with the Board that tenants had been 
very patient, that there had been some complaints, but they had been very 
understanding and also staff had met with the tenants to discuss the issue. Chairman 
Ceballos asked if there was any heating. Mr. Vidaurri responded that there was not at 
that point. Chairma n Ceballos asked if there was anything they could do with the old 
system and Mr. Vidaurri responded that unfortunately not, that they had multiple 
people coming to look at it due to the urgency and they did not want to accept the word 
of just one person, so three people came to the same conclusion . Chairman Ceballos 
asked if they were working through the weekend. Mr. Vidaurri responded that they 
were not because they were waiting for some parts to come in on Monday, but they had 
been working to prep, working on the piping and taking the system out of the way. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that if it goes beyond Monday, maybe they should set up 
a small electric system because they cannot keep them without hot water much longer, 
even if it is low ca pacity, something temporary. Mr. Vidaurri responded that it was 
understood. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that Mr. Vidaurri stated they wil l complete 
it on Monday. Mr. Vidaurri responded that it was the plan, by the end of the day on 
Monday. Vice·Chairman Dr. Garza asked who will be supervising it to make sure it will 
get finished by the end of Monday and if it would be Mr. Vidaurri. Mr. Vidaurri stated 
that he will be visiting the sit e throughout the day and that they also have the Manager 
and the Maintenance staff there at the site so that if there is anything the insta llers 
need, the staff will get it done. Chairman Ceballos recommended that Mr. Vidaurri 
assess if it will go through the week, then they w ill need to get a temporary electric 
water heater, even if it is a 100 or 60 gallon water heater. Mr. Vidaurri responded that 
it was understood. Chairman Ceballos thanked Mr. Vidaurri for his work and resea rch 
on this issue. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to ratify Item 70. 
Vice-Chairman Or. Garza seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
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Chairman Ceballos mentioned that they will go back to Item 6, the Budget Workshop. 

8. EXECUTIVE CLOSED SESSION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 

The Board of Commissioners fo r t he Housing Authority of t he City of Laredo reserve the right 
to adjourn into Executive Closed Session at any t ime during the course of this meeting to discuss 
any of the matters listed on the posted agenda, above, as authorized by the Texas Government 
Code, including Sections 551.071 (consultation with attorneys), 551.072 (del iberations about 
rea l property), 551.073 (deliberat ions about gifts and donations), 551.074 (personnel matters) 
considerat ion of administrat ive positions and dut ies, 551.076 (deliberations about security 
devices), and 551.086 (economic development). 

9. ACTION ON ANY CLOSED SESSION ITEM 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman Ceballos moved to adjourn the meeting. 

M s. Barrientos asked about It em 7C Chairman Ceballos stated that there was no action on 7C 
and reported just for the record that on the property at 820 Price, the owner had accepted the 
offer and they hoped to close in the next 20 days and stated that it was one of the projects they 
have as part of the Reinvestment Program for the Urban Inner City Reinvestment or Renewal, 
so they will report back on what they w ill do with that property, maybe a tiny home project or 
maybe something else and Chairman Ceballos would like to keep Deacon Bernal, who is t he 
owner of the property, involved and said that he did not rea lize Deacon Bernal was a Vietnam 
Veteran, so he thinks they could make a very good project and keep Deacon Bernal engaged in 
how that project is used, maybe to serve veterans and he will keep them all info rmed, so maybe 
at the next opportunity they wi ll bring the project to t he Board and inform them what it is all 
about and said t hat they do not rea lly have much of a project deSign, but they can work on it 
and his point is that he wou ld like to keep Deacon Bernal involved, that the fact that they may 
end up with that property is symbolic of thei r work and his service work in the community, so 
Chairman Ceballos thanked the staff for reminding him about thi s item. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to adjourn the meeting. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra seconded the motion. 
Mot ion passed unanimously. 

M eet ing adjourned at 2:05 p.m. 

Jos l. Ceballos, Board Chairman ecutive Director 
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